THE INDICATIVE
PRESENT TENSES
PRESENT SIMPLE

FORM:
AFFIRMATIVE:   V (short infinitive-e.g. go)

                             E.g. I speak English. 
                            Third person singular (he, she, it) V+s(es)

                           E.g. She speaks English. / He cooks very well. 
NEGATIVE:    DO+NOT+V(don’t)

                        E.g. I don’t smoke.
                       Third person singular: DOES+NOT+V(doesn’t)

                       E.g. She doesn’t speak Italian

INTERROGATIVE: DO+S+V

                               E.g. Do you speak English?

                              Third person singular: DOES+S+V 

                             E.g. Does she speak English? 
NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE: DO+NOT+S+V

                                                    E.g. Don’t you speak English?  

                                                   Third person singular: DOES+NOT+S+V

                                                   E.g. Doesn’t he speak English?

The verb TO BE (A FI)     PRESENT SIMPLE:

AFFIRMATIVE                           NEGATIVE                   INTERROGATIVE
	I am a student
	I am not (I’m not) a student
	Am I a student?

	You are a student
	You are not (aren’t) a student  
	Are you a student?

	She/he is a student
	She/He is not (isn’t) a student
	Is he/she a student?

	It is a cat
	It is not (isn’t) a cat
	Is it a cat?

	We are students
	We are not (aren’t) students
	Are we students?

	They are students
	They are not (aren’t) students
	Are they students?


PRESENT CONTINUOUS

FORM:

AFFIRMATIVE:    S+TO BE (present simple)+V+ING
                             E.g.I am listening to music now.
NEGATIVE:        S+TO BE+NOT+V+ING
                            E.g. I am not listening to music now.(I’m not listening)

INTERROGATIVE: TO BE+S+V+ING
                                E.g. Are you listening to music now?

NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE TO BE+NOT+S+V+ING
                                                   E.g. Aren’t you listening to music now?
PRESENT PERFECT SIMPLE

FORM:

AFFIRMATIVE: S+HAVE+THE 3RD FORM OF THE VERB
                           E.g. I have written my homework today.
                          The 3rd person singular: S+HAS+THE 3RD FORM OF THE              

                          VERB
                           E.g. She has written her homework today.

NEGATIVE:  S+HAVE+NOT+THE 3RD FORM OF THE VERB
                      E.g. I haven’t written my homework yet.
INTERROGATIVE: HAVE+S+THE 3RD FORM OF THE VERB
                               E.g. Have you written your homework today?
                              The 3rd person singular: HAS+S+THE 3RD FORM OF THE 

                              VERB 
                               E.g. Has she written her homework today?
NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE:  HAVE+NOT+S+THE 3RD FORM OF THE 

                                                    VERB
                                                     E.g. Haven’t you written your homework       

                                                     yet? 
                                                    The 3rd person singular: HAS+NOT+S+THE 

                                                    3RD FORM OF THE VERB  
                                                    E.g. Hasn’t she written her homework yet?
PRESENT PERFECT CONTINUOUS

FORM: 

 AFFIRMATIVE: HAVE+BEEN+V+ING
                             E.g. I have been learning English for five years.
                             The 3rd person singular: HAS+BEEN+V+ING
                             E.g. She has been learning English for five years. 
NEGATIVE: HAVE+NOT+BEEN+V+ING
                     E.g. I haven’t been learning English for five years.   
                     The 3rd person singular: HAS+NOT+BEEN+V+ING
                      E.g. She hasn’t been learning English for five years.

INTERROGATIVE: HAVE+S+BEEN+V+ING

                                 E.g. Have you been learning English for five years? 

                                 The 3rd person singular : HAS+S+BEEN+V+ING

                                  E.g. Has she been learning English for five years? 

NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE: HAVE+NOT+S+BEEN+V+ING

                                                     E.g. Haven’t you been learning English for  

                                                     five years?  
                                                     The 3rd person singular: HAS+NOT+S+

                                                     +BEEN+V+ING
                                                      E.g. Hasn’t she been learning English for 

                                                      five years?  
PRESENT PERFECT SIMPLE / PRESENT PERFECT CONTINUOUS

	PRESENT PERFECT SIMPLE
	PRESENT PERFECT CONTINUOUS

	I have worked in the garden for an hour. (I have just finished working)
	I have been working in the garden for an hour. (I’m still working in the garden)


   PAST TENSES
PAST SIMPLE

FORM: 

AFFIRMATIVE: For regular verbs: V+ed
                            E.g. I played with the cat yesterday.
                            For irregular verbs: The 2nd form (SEE the irregular verbs 

                            tables)

                            E.g. I went to school yesterday.

NEGATIVE: for all the verbs: S+DIDN’T+V

                     E.g. I didn’t go to school yesterday.
INTERROGATIVE: for all the verbs: DID+S+V
                                E.g. Did you go there yesterday?
NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE: for all the verbs: DIDN’T +S+V
                                                    E.g. Didn’t you go there yesterday?
TO BE-PAST SIMPLE

	AFFIRMATIVE
	NEGATIVE
	INTERROGATIVE

	I was
	I wasn’t (was not)
	Was I?

	You were
	You weren’t (were not)
	Were you?

	She/He/It was
	She/He/It wasn’t
	Was she/he/it?

	We were
	We weren’t
	Were we?

	You were
	You weren’t
	Were you?

	They were
	They weren’t
	Were they?


PAST SIMPLE AND PRESENT PERFECT

	PAST SIMPLE (actions which happened in the past and are not related to the present)
	PRESENT PERFECT (actions which happened in the past which are related to the present)

	An action which happened at a definite time in the past:

Dana graduated from the University in 2002.
	An action which happened at an unstated time in the past (the time is not mentioned):
Dana has graduated from the University.

	An action which began and ended in the past:
Mrs. Sand taught English for thirty years. (She is no longer a teacher)
	An action which started in the past and continues up to the present:
Mrs. Benson has taught French for twenty years.

(She started teaching twenty years ago and she is still teaching.) 

	An action which happened in the past and can’t be repeated:
He once spoke to Elvis Presley. (He cannot speak to hom again because Elvis is dead.)
	An action which happened in the past and may be repeated:
I have spoken to Ricky Martin.( he is still alive so I can speak to him again.)

	An action which happened in a period of time which is over at the moment of speaking:
I wrote two letters this morning. (It is evening now)
	An action which happened in a period of time which is not over at the moment of speaking:
I’ve written two letters this morning.(It is 11 o’clock, the morning is not over yet)


PAST CONTINUOUS

FORM:

AFFIRMATIVE: S+WAS (WERE)+V+ING
                            E.g. I was writing a letter at two o’clock yesterday.
                            You were having a nap at two o’clock yesterday.
NEGATIVE: S+WAS NOT (WERE NOT) +V+ING
                     E.g. I was not (I wasn’t) writing a letter at two o’clock 

                     yesterday.
INTERROGATIVE: WAS (WERE) + S+V+ING
                                 E.g. Were you having a nap at two o’clock yesterday?
NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE: WAS (WERE)+NOT+S+V+ING
                                                     E.g. Weren’t you having a nap at two 

                                                     o’clock yesterday?
PAST PERFECT SIMPLE

FORM:

AFFIRMATIVE: HAD+3RD FORM OF THE VERB
                            E.g. I had finished dinner before I went out.
NEGATIVE: HAD+NOT+3RD FORM OF THE VERB
                     E.g. I hadn’t finished dinner before I went out.
INTERROGATIVE: HAD+S+3RD FORM OF THE VERB

                                 E.g. Had you finished dinner before you went out?
NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE:HAD+NOT+S+3RD FORM OF THE VERB
                                                   E.g. Hadn’t you finished dinner before you 

                                                   went out? 

PAST PERFECT CONTINUOUS

FORM:

AFFIRMATIVE: HAD+BEEN+V+ING
                            E.g. I had been speaking for 2 minutes when you called.
NEGATIVE:HAD+NOT+BEEN+V+ING
                    E.g. I hadn’t been speaking for 2 minutes when you called. 

INTERROGATIVE: HAD+S+BEEN+V+ING
                                     E.g. Had you been speaking for 2 minutes when I 
                                 called? 
NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE: HAD+NOT+S+BEEN+V+ING
                                                     E.g. Hadn’t you been speaking for 2 minutes 

                                                     when I called? 
FUTURE TENSES
FUTURE SIMPLE

FORM:

AFFIRMATIVE: WILL+V
                            E.g. I will visit you tomorrow.
                            (short form: I’ll visit)

Obs.: In some grammar books you will also find shall+V for the first person singular and plural (I shall go there tomorrow. We shall go there tomorrow.)

NEGATIVE: WILL+NOT+V(WON’T+V)
                      E.g. I will not (won’t) visit you tomorrow.

INTERROGATIVE: WILL+S+V
                                  E.g. Will you visit me tomorrow?
NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE: WILL+S+NOT(WON’T)+V
                                                     E.g. Will you not (won’t you) visit me 

                                                     tomorrow.
FUTURE CONTINUOUS

FORM:

AFFIRMATIVE: WILL+BE+V+ING
                             E.g. This time tomorrow I’ll be dancing at the party.
NEGATIVE: WILL+NOT (WON’T) +BE+V+ING
                      E.g. This time tomorrow I won’t be dancing at the party.
INTERROGATIVE: WILL+S+BE+V+ING
                                 E.g. Will you be dancing at the party this time 

                                 tomorrow?    
NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE: WILL+S+NOT (WON’T) + BE+V+ING
                                                     E.g. Won’t you be dancing at the party this 

                                                     time tomorrow? 

FUTURE PERFECT SIMPLE

FORM:

AFFIRMATIVE: WILL+HAVE+3RD FORM OF THE VERB
                            E.g. She will have finished her essay by eight o’clock. 

NEGATIVE: WILL+NOT (WON’T)+HAVE+3RD FORM OF THE VERB
                      E.g. She won’t have finished her essay by eight o’clock. 

INTERROGATIVE: WILL+S+HAVE+3RD FORM OF THE VERB

                                 E.g. Will she have finished her essay by eight o’clock?
NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE: WILL+S+NOT (WON’T)+HAVE+3RD 
                                                     FORM OF THE VERB

                                                     E.g.Won’t she have finished her essay by 

                                                     eight o’clock? 
FUTURE PERFECT CONTINUOUS
FORM:

AFFIRMATIVE: WILL+HAVE+BEEN+V+ING
                            E.g. By the end of the next year I’ll have been teaching for 
                            five years.   
NEGATIVE: WILL+NOT (WON’T)+HAVE+BEEN+V+ING
                      E.g. By the end of the next year I won’t have been teaching for

                      five years.  
INTERROGATIVE: WILL+S+HAVE+BEEN+V+ING
                                 E.g. Will you have been teaching for five years by the 

                                 end of the next year?
NEGATIVE-INTERROGATIVE: WILL+S+NOT (WON’T)+BEEN+V+ING
                                                     E.g. Won’t you have been teaching for five 

                                                      years by the end of the next year? 
OTHER WAYS OF EXPRESSING FUTURE

TO BE TO (Formal English)

    The Mayor is to visit Rome next week. 

     TO BE ABOUT TO:

I’m about to leave.

   TO BE ON THE POINT OF + ing form:
I’m on the point of closing down my company.

   TO BE DUE TO (timetables)

The train is due to arrive at 9 o’clock.

  TO BE SURE / TO BE BOUND TO:

My plan is bound to succeed.

 TO BE GOING TO (expressing intention)

My uncle is going to buy a house in the country.

